A RESOLUTION GOVERNING THE PURPOSE, DUTIES, COMPOSITION AND PROCEDURES OF THE DEKALB COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION

Section 1: Purpose and Duties

The purpose and duties of the Planning Commission shall be to conduct all other functions as contemplated and provided for under applicable state and county legislation, including, but not limited to:

- a. To review zoning cases and special land use permit requests in public hearings to make recommendations to the DeKalb County Board of Commissioners (BOC).
- b. To review and make recommendations to the BOC on zoning ordinances and zoning map amendments.
- c. To review and approve, disapprove or recommend one-time revisions of Sketch Plats.
- d. To work with various public and private agencies engaged in and interested in community planning and development activities so as to provide leadership in identifying and implementing county development objectives.
- e. To assist and advise the Department of Planning and Sustainability, the Board of Commissioners and the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) in carrying out other planning and developmental functions as may be necessary to achieve the desired benefits to DeKalb County residents.

Section 2: Composition

The Planning Commission shall consist of nine (9) members, residents of DeKalb County, who shall be appointed by the BOC or the CEO. Planning Commissioners appointed by the individual BOC members must reside in the District of the appointing Commissioner.

- a. Appointment: Each member of the BOC and the CEO shall make one appointment. One appointment shall be made by the majority vote of the BOC with the concurrence of the CEO.
- b. Term of Appointment: The term of each member of the Planning Commission shall run concurrently with the term of office of the person making the appointment, except that the member appointed by majority vote of the BOC shall have a four-year term. If the appointing member of the Board of Commissioners or the CEO should leave office before expiration of that person's term, the Planning Commission member appointed by that person shall continue to serve out the appointed term on the Planning Commission. Planning Commissioners can be reappointed to successive terms without limitation.

Section 3: Officers

The officers of the Planning Commission shall consist of a Chairman, a First Vice Chairman and a Second Vice Chairman.

- a. Election: The officers of the Planning Commission shall be elected at the annual organizational meeting held in March of each year or as soon thereafter as possible. Election shall be by a majority vote of a quorum of the Planning Commission. The terms of office for each officer will begin immediately upon election. An officer shall serve until relieved of his or her duties as provided for by applicable state and county legislation. Vacancies in office shall be filled at the next regular meeting by the special election procedure.
- b. Chairman: The Chairman shall be elected for a term of one year. The Chairman shall preside at all Planning Commission meetings, read opening statements and maintain order during the meetings. The Chairman shall decide on points of order and procedures subject to Roberts Rules of Order and the Bylaws. The Chairman shall have the privilege of discussing all matters before the Planning Commission.
- c. First Vice Chairman. The First Vice Chairman shall be elected for a term of one year and shall preside over meetings and hearings in the absence of the Chairman.
- d. Second Vice Chairman. The Second Vice Chairman shall serve for a term of one year and shall preside over meetings and hearings in the absence of the Chairman and the First Vice Chairman. In the absence of the Chairman and both Vice Chairmen, an acting Chairman shall be elected by the members.

Section 4: Training

No person shall serve as a member of the Planning Commission until they have been certified by the Planning Director as having completed eight (8) hours of training.

Section 5: Secretarial Service

The Planning Director shall appoint the Secretary of the Planning Commission. The Secretary shall provide administrative support, maintain the minutes and records of the meetings, prepare the agenda of all meetings and provide notice of the meetings. The Secretary shall also arrange for the necessary advertisements and proper legal notice of meetings. The Secretary shall also receive speaker cards from speakers at public meetings. All minutes, copies of notice, correspondence, reports and voting results shall be maintained as public records.

Section 6: Agenda and Minutes

The Department of Planning staff shall determine the meeting agenda. All business to be acted upon by the Planning Commission must appear on the agenda, except that upon a majority vote of a quorum of the Planning Commission, non-agenda business, which does not involve action directly affecting the public, may be discussed and acted upon. Meeting minutes shall indicate all important facts pertaining to each meeting, including a report of all actions taken, a listing of those members in attendance and absent. There shall also be a record of the voting results on each question.

Section 7: Meetings

Meetings of the Planning Commission shall be held according to the schedules set annually by the Board of Commissioners. Each member shall be notified of each meeting at least five (5) days preceding the meeting through an electronic notice of the meeting and agenda prepared and distributed by the Secretary.

All Planning Commission meetings shall be open to the public.

Section 8: Quorum

A quorum shall consist of five (5) of the members duly appointed. A majority vote of those members present constituting a quorum shall be sufficient to decide matters which come before the Planning Commission.

Section 9: Attendance

The minutes of public hearings shall show the members in attendance. It shall be the responsibility of each Planning Commissioner to notify the Chairman and the Secretary of his or her inability to attend a meeting. A Planning Commissioner may be removed by the BOC at any time for failure to attend three (3) consecutive meetings of for failure to attend seventy-five (75) percent or more of the meetings within a calendar year. The elected appointing member of the BOC or the CEO may also remove his or her appointed Planning Commissioner for any good cause related to the performance of duties. It shall be the responsibility of the Secretary of the Planning Commission to keep a record of the attendance of members and to notify both the Planning Commissioner and the BOC when any Planning Commissioner is removed pursuant to the failure to attend meetings requirement. No hearing before the BOC is allowed for a removal for a violation of the failure to attend meetings requirement. Such removal shall be effective ten (10) days following notification by the Secretary of the Planning Commission to the BOC.

Section 10: Removal for Cause

The appointing elected member of the BOC or CEO shall have the authority to remove his or her Planning Commissioner for cause, other than the failure to attend meetings, by providing written notice of such cause to the Secretary and to the Planning Commissioner proposed to be removed. Upon request of the Planning Commissioner proposed for removal for cause other than failure to attend meetings, the BOC shall hold a hearing on the removal before it becomes effective. Removal of a Planning Commissioner for cause other than failure to attend meetings shall require a majority vote of the BOC with the concurrence of the CEO. If a Planning Commissioner is still serving at the time his or her appointing elected official vacates his or her office, that Planning Commissioner shall only serve until a successor is appointed and qualified by the incoming elected official. Any vacancy in the membership of the Planning Commission shall be filled for the unexpired term in the same manner as the initial appointment.

Section 11: Exclusion from Holding other County Offices or Paid Positions

Members of the Planning Commission shall hold no other DeKalb County office or DeKalb County compensated position.

Section 12: Order of Business

The order of business at regular meetings shall be:

- 1. Determination of Quorum
- 2. Approval of minutes of previous meeting(s)
- 3. Deferred Cases or Old Business
- 4. New Cases or New Business
- 5. Adjournment

Section 13: Public Hearings

The Planning Commission shall conduct public hearings as required by applicable ordinances. Notice and advertising requirements shall be met by the Department of Planning and Sustainability as required by ordinances. In the absence of specific applicable procedures, the Planning Commission will follow Roberts Rules of Order.

The ordinances provide for the amount of time applicants, proponents and opponents may speak at Public Hearings. Planning Department Staff calls the cases. Neither proponents nor opponent generally shall have more than 10 minutes total to present their interest. For items which are recommended for "Withdrawal Without Prejudice", there shall be a maximum of 2 minutes for proponents and a maximum of 2 minutes for opponents. The Chairman then calls Applicants to present their case. If a zoning case contains a land use change and a companion zoning change, the cases may be presented in combination. Other supporters are called to speak followed by opponents for the allotted time. The Planning Department Staff presents the staff analysis and recommendations. The Chairman opens discussion among Planning Commissioners. Planning Commissioners may question staff, applicants, supporters or proponents. Following discussion, the Chairman calls for a motion. After a motion is made and seconded, the Planning Commissioners vote. The Secretary records the results of the vote in the meeting minutes.

Section 14: Voting

A member who is not sitting with the Planning Commission during the consideration of any issue because of a conflict of interest shall be considered present for quorum purposes, but absent for voting purposes as to a particular issue. On issues calling for a vote where the resulting vote is a tie, the matter will go forward with the accompanying notice, "No recommendation because of a tie vote."

Section 15: Amended Zoning/Land Use Applications

The Planning Commission may recommend amendments to a rezoning or land use amendment application including changes to conditions recommended by the staff and/or applicant which may be advisable so that the purpose of the Zoning Ordinance will be served, and the health, public safety and the general welfare of DeKalb County will be secured.

Section 16: Conflict of Interest

Should any member of the Planning Commission be financially or otherwise closely associated with any issue that comes before the Planning Commission for a vote, said member shall abstain from participating in consideration of the issue and shall not sit with the Planning Commission during such consideration. A member of the Planning Commission may raise the question of conflict of interest of another member regarding a specific issue that is before the Planning Commission. A majority of those present without such conflict shall determine if such conflict exists. In the absence of such conflict of interest challenge, the determination of conflict of interest shall be a matter of individual member judgment. Members of the Planning Commission are governed by the DeKalb County Code of Ethics.

Section 17: Budget

The Planning Commission does not have responsibility for budgeting funds. Expenses of the Planning Commission are handled through the DeKalb County Department of Planning and Sustainability.

Section 18: Roberts Rules of Order

Procedure not covered in these bylaws shall be governed by applicable ordinances, Zoning code and Roberts Rules of Order.

Section 19: Amendments

These bylaws may be amended by two-thirds vote of a quorum of the Planning Commission at a meeting when the proposed amendments have been stated in a written notice given thirty (30) days in advance.

Adopted by the DeKalb County Planning Commission this day ____ of _____ 2024.

Tess Snipes, Chair

DeKalb County Planning Commission